CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2018

Contents

	<u>Page</u>
Independent Auditors' Report	1
Consolidated Statement of Financial Position	3
Consolidated Statement of Activities	4
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows	5
Notes to Financial Statements	6
Independent Auditors' Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and On Compliance and Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with Government Auditing Standards	14



WATKINS, WARD and STAFFORD

Professional Limited Liability Company Certified Public Accountants James L. Stafford, CPA
Harry W. Stevens, CPA
S. Keith Winfield, CPA
William B. Staggers, CPA
Michael W. McCully, CPA
R. Steve Sinclair, CPA
Marsha L. McDonald, CPA
Wanda S. Holley, CPA
Robin Y. McCormick, CPA/PFS
J. Randy Scrivner, CPA
Kimberly S. Caskey, CPA
Susan M. Lummus, CPA
Thomas J. Browder, CPA

Stephen D. Flake, CPA
John N. Russell, CPA
Thomas A. Davis, CPA
Anita L. Goodrum, CPA
Ricky D. Allen, CPA
Jason D. Brooks, CPA
Robert E. Cordle, Jr., CPA
Jerry L. Rackley, Jr., CPA
Jerry L. Gammel, CPA
Michael C. Knox, CPA
Clifford P. Stewart, CPA
Edward A. Maxwell, CPA

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

To the Board of Directors United Methodist Ministry with Children and Families, Inc. and Subsidiary Jackson, Mississippi

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of United Methodist Ministry with Children and Families, Inc. and Subsidiary (a nonprofit organization), which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as of December 31, 2018, and the related consolidated statements of activities and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to financial statements.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors' Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in *Government Auditing Standards*, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free of material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors' judgment, including assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditors consider internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of United Methodist Ministry with Children and Families, Inc. and Subsidiary, as of December 31, 2018, and the changes in its net assets and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated October 22, 2020, on our consideration of United Methodist Ministry with Children and Families, Inc. and Subsidiary's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering United Methodist Ministry with Children and Families, Inc. and Subsidiary's internal control over financial reporting and compliance.

Ridgeland, Mississippi October 22, 2020 Watkins Ward and Stafford, Puc

Consolidated Statement of Financial Positon December 31, 2018

<u>Assets</u>

Current Assets		
Cash and cash equivalents	\$	1,344,496
Due from Department of Human Services		631,516
Contributions receivable		67,335
Miscellaneous receivables due from others		14,040
Prepaid insurance		91,346
Total Current Assets		2,148,733
Land, buildings and equipment, net of accumulated depreciation and amortization		2,550,535
Other Assets		
Restricted cash funds		925,569
Investments		898,908
Charitable remainder trust		60,051
Miscellaneous other assets		7,959
Total Other Assets		1,892,487
Total Assets	<u>\$</u>	6,591,755
Liabilities and Net Assets		
Current Liabilities		
Accounts payable	\$	157,290
Deferred revenue		4,667
Accrued expenses		22,642
Total Current Liabilities		184,599
Net Assets		
Without donor restrictions		5,421,536
With donor restrictions		985,620
Total Net Assets		6,407,156
Total Liabilities and Net Assets	\$	6,591,755

The accompanying notes to financial statements are an integral part of these financial statements.

Consolidated Statement of Activities Year Ended December 31, 2018

				With donor restrictions		Total
Support and Revenue	-					,
Contributions	\$	768,434	\$	225,761	\$	994,195
Department of Human Services		2,391,521		-		2,391,521
Other care-providing fees		482,455		-		482,455
USDA meal reimbursement and rebate		29,231		-		29,231
Interest and dividends		62,638		18,705		81,343
Fundraising revenue		1,000		-		1,000
Rental income		99,700		-		99,700
Miscellaneous income		114,941		-		114,941
Gain on disposal of vehicles		10,171		-		10,171
Loss on sale of investments		(12,384)		-		(12,384)
Net unrealized loss on investments		(65,764)		-		(65,764)
		3,881,943		244,466		4,126,409
Net assets released from restrictions		221,315		(221,315)		_
Total Support and Revenue		4,103,258		23,151		4,126,409
Expenses						
Program Services						
Foster family care		650,278		-		650,278
Group homes		2,522,935		-		2,522,935
Community care		552,036				552,036
Total Program Services		3,725,249				3,725,249
Supporting Services						
Fundraising and development		286,483		-		286,483
General and administrative		416,912		-		416,912
Total Supporting Services		703,395				703,395
Total Expenses		4,428,644				4,428,644
Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets		(325,386)		23,151		(302,235)
Net Assets, Beginning of Year		5,746,922		962,469		6,709,391
Net Assets, End of Year	<u>\$</u>	5,421,536	\$	985,620	\$	6,407,156

The accompanying notes to financial statements are an integral part of these financial statements.

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

Year Ended December 31, 2018

~ 1 ~	^	. •	
('ach flowe	tram	Onergting	20f13/1f160'
Cash flows	TIOII	Operaniz	acuvincs.

3 · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	
Decrease in net assets	\$ (302,235)
Adjustments to reconcile change in net assets to net cash provided by	
operating activities-	
Depreciation	286,301
Net unrealized loss on investments	65,764
Loss on sale of investments	12,384
Gain on disposal of vehicle	(10,171)
Increase in contributions receivable	(5,833)
Increase in due from others	(8,178)
Increase in due from Department of Human Services	(366,835)
Increase in prepaid insurance	(5,611)
Increase in miscellaneous other assets	(1,236)
Decrease in accounts payable	(62,397)
Increase in accrued expenses	3,760
Decrease in deferred revenue	 (17,370)
Net cash used by operating activities	 (411,657)
Cash flows from investing activities:	
Purchase of equipment and improvements	(168,841)
Proceeds from disposal of vehicle	10,171
Purchase of investments	(51,337)
Proceeds from sale of investments	 281,785
Net cash provided by investing activities	 71,778
Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents	(339,879)
Beginning of year cash and cash equivalents	 2,609,944
End of year cash and cash equivalents	\$ 2,270,065
Recap of cash and cash equivalents	
Cash and cash equivalents-unrestricted	\$ 1,344,496
Restricted cash funds	 925,569
Total cash and cash equivalents	\$ 2,270,065
	 ·

The accompanying notes to financial statements are an integral part of these financial statements.

NOTE 1 - ORGANIZATION

The United Methodist Ministry with Children and Families, Inc. and Subsidiary (the Organization) is an organization whose principal activity consists of providing children with a safe place in which they can heal and thrive through provision, guidance and counseling. Sources of revenue are primarily from contributions and funds received from the Mississippi Department of Human Resources as per diem payments towards the children's support. The Organization is a non-profit organization in good standing incorporated under the laws of the state of Mississippi.

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The summary of significant accounting policies is presented to assist in understanding the consolidated financial statements. The consolidated financial statements and notes are presentations of the Organization which is responsible for their integrity and objectivity.

Principles of Consolidation

The accompanying consolidated statement of financial position and statements of activities and cash flows, include the accounts of United Methodist Ministry with Children and Families, Inc. and United Methodist Children's Homes of Mississippi, LLC, which is a 100% owned subsidiary of the United Methodist Ministry with Children and Families, Inc. and is considered a disregarded entity for tax and reporting purposes.

Basis of accounting

The consolidated financial statements of the Organization have been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting for the year ended December 31, 2018.

Basis of presentation of net assets

The Organization reports net assets with donor restrictions or net assets without donor restrictions depending on the existence or nature of any donor restrictions. Net assets without donor restrictions are available to be used in the general operations of the Organization. Net assets restricted by the donor for a particular purpose or a particular future period are considered net assets with restrictions. When the restriction expires, the restricted net assets are reclassified to net assets without donor restrictions.

Contributions

Donated marketable securities and other noncash donations are recorded at their estimated fair value at the date of the donation. Contributions are recorded as increases in net assets without donor restrictions and net assets with donor restrictions, depending on the existence and/or nature of any donor restrictions.

Cash and cash equivalents

For purposes of these financial statements, cash and cash equivalents are included with current assets and consist of cash held in bank checking accounts, accounts with the Mississippi United Methodist Foundation, and certificates of deposit.

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Receivables

Receivables are shown at their net realizable value. An allowance for uncollectible receivables is provided when determined by management to be necessary based on its analysis of amounts and nature of outstanding accounts. As of December 31, 2018, management has determined that no allowance is necessary and amounts are fully collectible.

Investments

Investments in shares of mutual funds are stated at fair value based on available market quotations.

Land, buildings and equipment

The Organization capitalizes all expenditures for land, buildings and equipment in excess of \$5,000 at cost. Depreciation is provided over the estimated useful lives on a straight-line basis. No provision is made for depreciation on properties carried as investments.

Compensated absences

The Organization allows employees to receive compensation for vacation and sick leave. Compensated absences for vacation and sick pay have not been accrued, but are expensed as incurred. The Organization does not consider the accrued compensation, at year end, to be material to the financial statements.

Estimates

The process of preparing consolidated financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions regarding certain reported amounts and disclosures. Accordingly, upon settlement, actual results may differ from those estimated amounts.

Net accounting pronouncements

On August 18, 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-14, Not-for-Profit Entities (Topic 958) Presentation of Financial Statements of Not-for-Profit Entities. The Organization has adjusted the presentation of its financial statements accordingly, applying the changes retroactively as of and for the year ended December 31, 2017. The new standards change the following aspects of the Organization's financial statements:

- The unrestricted net assets have been renamed net assets without donor restrictions.
- The temporarily restricted and permanently restricted net assets have been combined into a single net asset class called net assets with donor restrictions.
- The financial statements include a new disclosure about liquidity and availability of financial
- The financial statements include a disclosure of functional expenses for the year ended December 31, 2018.

NOTE 2 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

The changes have the following effect on net assets as of December 31, 2017:

	Α	s originally	Afte	After adoption		
Net Asset Class	1	presented	of AS	SU-2016-14		
Unrestricted	\$	5,746,922	\$	-		
Temporarily restricted		366,957		-		
Permanently restricted		595,512		-		
Net assets without donor restrictions		-	:	5,746,922		
Net assets with donor restrictions				962,469		
Total net assets	\$	6,709,391	\$	6,709,391		

NOTE 3-LIQUIDITY AND AVAILABILITY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS

The following reflects the Organization's financial assets as of the statement of financial position date, reduced by amounts not available for general use because of contractual or donor-imposed restrictions within one year of the statement of financial position date.

Financial assets as of December 31, 2018:		
Cash and cash equivalents	\$	1,344,496
Receivables		712,891
Restricted cash funds		925,569
Investments		898,908
		3,881,864
Less those unavailable for general expenditures:		
Restricted net assets of the Organization		(985,620)
Financial assets available to meet cash needs for		
general expenditure within on year	<u>\$</u>	2,896,244

Financial assets available to meet cash needs for general expenditure within one year, consists of \$3,881,864 held in cash and cash equivalents, receivables and investments in marketable equity securities which could cover in excess of one year of general expenditures.

The Organization receives significant contributions restricted by donors and considers contributions restricted for programs which are ongoing, major and central to its annual operations to be available to meet cash needs for general expenditure. The Organization manages its liquidity and reserves by operating within a prudent range of financial soundness and stability, maintaining adequate liquid assets to fund near-term operating needs, and maintaining sufficient reserves to provide reasonable assurance that long-term obligations will be discharged.

NOTE 4 - DONATED SERVICES

The United Methodist Ministry with Children and Families, Inc. and Subsidiary (the Organization) receives a substantial amount of donated time from a number of volunteers which does not meet the recognition criteria of Financial Accounting Standards Board ASC 958-605, which states that contributions of services are recognized as revenue at their estimated fair value only when the services received create or enhance non-financial assets or require specialized skills possessed by the individual providing the service and the service would typically need to be purchased if not donated. Accordingly, the value of this donated time has not been determined and is not reflected in the accompanying financial statements.

NOTE 5 - INCOME TAXES

The Organization is a non-profit organization and is exempt from federal income taxes under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code. Accordingly, no provision for taxes has been made in the accompanying financial statements. The Organization believes that it has appropriate support for any tax positions taken, and as such, does not have uncertain tax positions that qualify for recognition or disclosure in the consolidated financial statements. Generally, the Organization's tax returns remain open for three years for federal income tax examination.

NOTE 6 - LAND, BUILDINGS AND EQUIPMENT

The following is a summary of land, buildings and equipment at December 31, 2018:

Land	\$	37,397
Buildings and improvements		4,087,437
Equipment		152,065
Transportation equipment		323,020
Furniture and fixtures		70,376
		4,670,295
Less accumulated depreciation and amortization		(2,119,760)
	<u>\$</u>	2,550,535

Depreciation expense charged to operations was \$286,301 for the year ended December 31, 2018.

NOTE 7 - INVESTMENTS

The following is a summary of investments at December 31, 2018:

	Cost	Market			nrealized Gain
Equity mutual funds	\$ 756,594	\$	898,908	<u>\$</u>	142,314

Notes to Financial Statements

NOTE 8 - FAIR VALUE OF INVESTMENTS

Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Accounting Standards Codification (ASC) 820, Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures, provides the framework for measuring fair value. That framework provides a fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs to valuation techniques used to measure fair value. Investments with readily available active quoted prices or for which fair value can be measured from actively quoted prices generally will have a higher degree of market price observability and a lesser degree of judgment used in measuring fair value. In the absence of actively quoted prices and observable inputs, estimated prices are based on available historical data and near term pricing information that reflects its market assumptions. The statement requires that assets and liabilities carried at fair value will be classified and disclosed in one of the following three categories:

- Level 1 Quoted market prices in active markets for identical assets and liabilities.
- Level 2 Observable market based inputs or unobservable inputs that are corroborated by market data.
- Level 3 Unobservable inputs that are not corroborated by market data.

Fair value of assets measured on a recurring basis at December 31, 2017, are as follows:

	Level 1		Level 2		Level 3		Total	
Equity mutual funds	\$	898,908	\$		\$		\$	898,908

Equity mutual funds

Fair value of shares held in equity mutual funds securities is determined by reference to quoted market prices and other relevant information generated by market transactions.

NOTE 9 - CHARITABLE REMAINDER TRUST

As of December 31, 2018, the Organization had received an unconditional promise to give from an estate in the amount of \$752,000. The Organization will receive the funds after all beneficiaries are deceased. The present value of the unconditional promise was estimated at \$60,051 at December 31, 2018. The unamortized discount using the federal rate will be recognized over the remaining lives of the beneficiaries, estimated at 48 years.

NOTE 10 - DEFERRED REVENUE

Deferred revenue represents amounts received in advance for expenses that will be incurred during 2019.

NOTE 11 – FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

The costs of providing various programs and other activities have been summarized on a functional basis in the Consolidated Statement of Activities. Accordingly, certain costs have been allocated among the programs and supporting services benefited. The expenses that are allocated include depreciation, which is allocated on the basis of usage of the related buildings and equipment, as well as personnel costs, which are allocated on the basis of time and effort. Directly identifiable expenses are charged to specific programs and supporting services.

NOTE 11-FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES (CONTINUED)

	F	Program Services			Supporting Services			
	Foster family care	Group homes	Community care	Fundraising and development	General and administrative	Total		
Salaries	\$ 290,828	\$1,546,227	\$ 415,109	\$ 173,567	\$ 74,521	\$ 2,500,252		
Employee benefits	19,974	136,935	26,786	10,038	7,230	200,963		
Payroll taxes	21,266	113,408	30,271	12,814	5,478	183,237		
	332,068	1,796,570	472,166	196,419	87,229	2,884,452		
Advertising	1,590	-	-	31,710	52	33,352		
Allowances	-	17,574	-	-	-	17,574		
Auto	2,147	23,205	919	-	4,260	30,531		
Dues and subscriptions	-	-	-	755	22,879	23,634		
Food and clothing	1,258	89,823	623	-	565	92,269		
Foster care payments	242,334	-	-	-	-	242,334		
Gifts	283	742	287	-	-	1,312		
Insurance	12,598	122,931	16,721	4,255	86,383	242,888		
Maintenance and repairs	6,536	49,638	8,034	-	95,287	159,495		
Medical	-	384	-	-	-	384		
Miscellaneous	281	2,213	1,008	170	-	3,672		
Office and program								
supplies	273	14,475	908	33,594	59,587	108,837		
Professional fees	1,656	10,916	4,531	-	4,754	21,857		
Records management	600	1,800	8,940	-	-	11,340		
Recreation	1,189	19,562	-	-	-	20,751		
Startup and training	7,541	17,410	8,117	5,808	18,431	57,307		
Travel	4,098	78	465	1,151	405	6,197		
Utilities and telephone	13,843	141,253	20,048		9,013	184,157		
	628,295	2,308,574	542,767	273,862	388,845	4,142,343		
Depreciation and								
amortization	21,983	214,361	9,269	12,621	28,067	286,301		
	\$ 650,278	\$2,522,935	\$ 552,036	\$ 286,483	\$ 416,912	\$ 4,428,644		

NOTE 12 – NET ASSETS WITH DONOR RESTRICTIONS

Net assets subject to donor imposed restriction, were restricted according to the following designations at December 31, 2018:

Spending of corpus allowed	
Asbury Foundation	\$ 99,284
Gene Still Kirk Thornton Fund	1,756
Wilson Price Trust	8,041
Velma Rogers Scholarship Fund	14,111
Dr. H.F. Magee Fund	17,979
Lee and Beulah Rogers Fund	11,986
Frank Youngblood Fund	1,236
Holland Family Endowment	2,792
Elmo and Pearl McClain Fund	119,855
William and Kate Cook Fund	29,964
R.B. Fulcher Memorial Fund	1,000
Hattie Coleman Fund	1,000
Northwest Campaign Endowment	6,592
Dr. James Donald Duggar Champion Fund	11,472
Remainder interest in Dupuy Charitable Remainder Trust	 60,051
	 387,119
Corpus to be held in perpetuity	
Streater Endowment	48,000
Asbury Foundation	500,000
Clemeth Risley Fund	10,000
Crossgates UMC MCH Endowment	 40,501
	598,501
Total net assets with donor restrictions	\$ 985,620

NOTE 13 - RETIREMENT PLAN

The Organization participates in the defined contribution pension plan of the United Methodist Church. Qualifying full time employees become eligible to participate in the plan after one year of service. Participants can make voluntary deferrals to the plan subject to a certain allowable portion of their salary after becoming eligible to participate. Voluntary deferrals for the year ended December 31, 2018 were \$14,658. The Organization makes matching contributions to deferring participants up to 5% of eligible compensation. The Organization paid \$13,039 in matching contributions to the plan during 2018.

NOTE 14 - RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The Organization has \$1,068,301 in accounts at the Mississippi United Methodist Foundation, Inc. as of December 31, 2018, \$142,732 of these funds are unrestricted and are included in current assets as part of cash and cash equivalents and \$925,569 of these funds are restricted and are included in others assets and shown as part of restricted cash funds.

NOTE 15 - COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

The Organization has funds on deposit in financial institutions, which may at times, exceed amounts covered by the U.S. Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC). At December 31, 2018, the Organization exceeded the insured limited by \$114,655. The Organization has not experienced any losses and believes it is not exposed to any significant credit risk to cash. The Organization also has funds in accounts at the United Methodist Foundation of Mississippi. The Organization monitors the financial condition of the funds which are held in cash and cash equivalent securities.

NOTE 16 - CONCENTRATION OF RISK AND ECONOMIC DEPENDENCY

The Organization receives a significant amount of funds from the Mississippi Department of Human Services. The amount received during 2018 represents 58% of total revenue. The Organization's dependency on this source of revenue exposes it to the risks that exist due to concentration of revenue from one source.

NOTE 17-RECLASSIFICATIONS

Certain reclassifications of amounts previously reported have been made to the accompanying financial statements to maintain consistency between the periods presented. The reclassifications had no impact on previously reported net assets.

NOTE 18 - EVALUATION OF SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Events that occur after the consolidated statement of financial position date but before the consolidated financial statements are available to be issued must be evaluated for recognition or disclosure. The effects of subsequent events that provide evidence about conditions that existed at the consolidated statement of financial position date are recognized in the accompanying consolidated financial statements. Subsequent events which provide evidence about conditions that existed after the consolidated statement of financial position date require disclosure in the accompanying notes. The Organization has evaluated subsequent events through October 22, 2020, the date which the consolidated financial statements were available to be issued, and determined the following event required disclosures:

On March 11, 2020, the World Health Organization declared the COVID-19 virus outbreak to be a pandemic. Management has evaluated the potential impact of the pandemic on the Organization's operations. As of October 22, 2020, the Organization reports no measurably adverse effects on revenue, workforce or related costs which can be attributed directly to COVID-19. The Organization currently has significant revenue and financial reserves to continue operations for the foreseeable future.

	e de la companya del companya de la companya del companya de la co	grade in gr	$\Phi^{(1)} = \{ (1, 2, \dots, 2, n) \mid 1 \leq n \leq n \}$, 3 - +	and the second	4.	
		- 60	the second second				
					,	8 -	
	1912년 1일				• • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •		
		en de la companya de					
	맞추는 원인경기는 원인 및 그림			No.			
			grafia i di d	e x i zekt			
P							
				And the	· 是一个是一个		
			and the second s				
				* 9			
				#4 11 78			
			医大學遺傳 医蒙耳			\$ \$ 2	
		i d i	•				
				ŀ			
			いい 「いっぱん」 -				
			ting The spin of the			afeline A	
<i>\$</i>			Action to the				
	The second of many above with the				्र. विशेष १९५४ - १९५४ - १९५४	- 11 (15) 1일 참 (21) 18 (15) 1일 (15) 13 (15) 13 (15) 13 (15) 13 (15) 13 (15) 13 (15) 13 (15) 13 (15) 13 (15) 13 (15) 13 (15)	
		ritaria. Ligaren 1		1.4.3		一定区 建新建筑	
	3. \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$ \$		Fam				
	용기 발표 하기 않는 것이다. 참요		4.41°	12. 14 A	The state of the	. e e i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i i	
			•				
				Marin de la companya			
			F 4.				
		en e	ार्ष्ट १ । १५८				
		.					
				4.24			
					in the second of		
	e out P		e de Santa de Carta de La Carta de Car La composição de Carta de Car	1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1			
						Andrew Mark	tigat o distribuida. Tambén
3							
			1				
				1. 线镜			
			,				
			tyma. 👻 Artik				
				pril 1994	The second of the second		
	Right Bulletine All Sections						
		en e	.(
		ega intropega Lakara				attentia originali si Suariatti sara	
					in the state of th		
			• •	. "			
			* *fc +			(日籍) (日) (日)	
***	The state of the s	er se jako jugo	s gar	e Adribe	$I_{2,1}$		-
	e de la section de la company					n de la companya de l	
		1 N T	a = b				
				300		· 1 24 · 1 · 1 · 1 · 1 · 1 · 1 · 1 · 1 · 1 ·	
			. * '¥				
i j		. (***				:	75%
				11.			
		7			• •	Marine Salah	
\$		A.A.					
[基本通道]			*• ∫		*# ₄ ,		



WATKINS, WARD and STAFFORD

Professional Limited Liability Company Certified Public Accountants James L. Stafford, CPA
Harry W. Stevens, CPA
S. Keith Winfield, CPA
William B. Staggers, CPA
Michael W. McCully, CPA
R. Steve Sinclair, CPA
Marsha L. McDonald, CPA
Wanda S. Holley, CPA
Robin Y. McCormick, CPA/PFS
J. Randy Scrivner, CPA
Kimberly S. Caskey, CPA
Susan M. Lummus, CPA
Thomas J. Browder, CPA

Stephen D. Flake, CPA
John N. Russell, CPA
Thomas A. Davis, CPA
Anita L. Goodrum, CPA
Ricky D. Allen, CPA
Jason D. Brooks, CPA
Robert E. Cordle, Jr., CPA
Perry C. Rackley, Jr., CPA
Jerry L. Gammel, CPA
Michael C. Knox, CPA
Clifford P. Stewart, CPA
Edward A. Maxwell, CPA

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Board of Directors United Methodist Ministry with Children and Families, Inc. and Subsidiary

We have audited, in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in *Government Auditing Standards* issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of United Methodist Ministry with Children and Families, In. and Subsidiary which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as of December 31, 2018, and the related consolidated statements of activities, and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to financial statements, and have issued our report thereon dated October 22, 2020.

Internal Control over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered United Methodist Ministry with Children and Families, Inc. and Subsidiary's internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of United Methodist Ministry with Children and Families, Inc. and Subsidiary's internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Organization's internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit, we did not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether United Methodist Ministry with Children and Families, Inc. and Subsidiary's financial statements are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing on internal control and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the Organization's internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the Organization's internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this report is not suitable for any other purpose.

Ridgeland, Mississippi October 22, 2020 Watkins Ward and Staffod, Puc